
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 10, 2020 


7:00 P.M. 
 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
President 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
Secretary 
 
III. AUDIENCE RECOGNITION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 


a. Public Comment 
  
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  


Regular Meeting of July 13, 2020 (Action Required) 
 


V. MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS/BUSINESS 
 
President 


President's report 
 


Treasurer 
Financial Report – July (Action Required)  
Treasurer's report/Bills for Payment (Action Required) 


 
Executive Director 


Executive Director's Report   
       
VI. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 
 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 


a.  Approval and Certification of the FY20  Illinois Public Library Annual Report (Action 
 Required) 


b. Consideration of COVID-19 Relief Fund Intergovernmental Agreement with Lake 
County  (Action Required) 
 


IX. GENERAL INFORMATION 
    


X. ADJOURNMENT  





























































































































 


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 


COVID19 RELIEF FUND 


 


THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of ______________, 2020, by and between the County 
of Lake (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY") and __________________ (hereinafter referred 
to as "TAXING DISTRICT," regardless of legal organization which may include a Home Rule 
unit of government). The COUNTY and the TAXING DISTRICT shall hereinafter be referred to 
jointly as the Parties.  


RECITALS 


WHEREAS, the Illinois Constitution and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 
220/ et. seq) authorize units of local government, including counties and municipalities, to contract 
or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not prohibited by law and to jointly 
exercise any power, privilege or authority conferred upon them by law; and 


WHEREAS, Article 7, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution of 1971 and the Illinois 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq. allow units of public entities to enter into 
intergovernmental agreements in the furtherance of their governmental purposes; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
(“CARES Act”) the COUNTY received approximately one hundred twenty-two million dollars 
from the United States Government (“CARES Act Funds”); and  


WHEREAS, the CARES Act provides for payments to local governments navigating the 
impact of the COVID-19 outbreak via the Coronavirus Relief Fund; and  


WHEREAS, the CARES Act provides that payments from the Coronavirus Relief Fund 
may only be used to cover expenses which:  (1) are necessary expenditures incurred due to the 
public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); (2) were not 
accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date of enactment 
of the CARES Act) for the local government; and (3) were incurred during the period that begins 
on March 1, 2020 and ends on December 30, 2020; and  


WHEREAS, the COUNTY was eligible to receive payments under the CARES Act, as it 
is a unit of local government in excess of 500,000 residents; and  


WHEREAS, the United States Department of Treasury (“Treasury”) has issued guidelines 
with regards to the authorized use of funds allocated to local governments under the CARES Act; 
and  


WHEREAS, this Agreement is intended to promote the most efficient distribution of 
financial resources which have been made available to the COUNTY to benefit the citizens of the 
COUNTY; and  
 WHEREAS, under the CARES Act, should the Office of the Inspector General determine 
that the funds were used in a manner contrary to the intent of the Act or contrary to the United 
States’ Department of Treasury guidelines, the CARES Act provides that the federal government 
may recoup the improperly spent funds from the COUNTY; and  


WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the TAXING DISTRICT within Lake County, and its 
residents, have suffered secondary effects of the coronavirus emergency; and  


WHEREAS, the COUNTY, as the jurisdiction responsible for disbursement of funds under 
the CARES Act, finds that it is appropriate to use these funds to defray certain costs incurred by 
the TAXING DISTRICT related to the coronavirus emergency; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to guidance and interpretations of Treasury, the COUNTY as 
recipient of CARES Act funds may distribute a portion of those funds to other responsible entities 
within the COUNTY to assist in distributing CARES Act funds to those most in need of such funds 







 


to be administered in compliance with the CARES Act, current and amended Treasury guidance 
and interpretations, and this Agreement; and 
 WHEREAS, the COUNTY may provide direct reimbursement to a TAXING DISTRICT 
that has eligible reimbursements per the Treasury guidance, both current and as amended; and 


 NOW, THEREFORE, the COUNTY and the TAXING DISTRICT hereby agree as 
follows:   
 
1.0 Recitals, Definitions, and Purpose.  


1.1 Recitals Incorporated. The recitals set forth above are incorporated in this Agreement 
by reference and made a part of this Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”).  


1.2 Definitions.  
1.2.1 “CARES ACT funds” shall refer to funds which have been allocated to the 


COUNTY under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
(“CARES Act”) of which the COUNTY is responsible for the disposition. 


1.2.2 “Forms” shall refer to forms or application documents used to seek 
reimbursement of coronavirus related expenses under this agreement.  


1.2.3 All other words used in this agreement which are not specifically defined 
shall have their normal and ordinary meaning.   


1.3 Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a contractual relationship 
between the COUNTY and TAXING DISTRICT with regards to the proposed 
reimbursement of municipal expenses associated with the coronavirus emergency from 
federal CARES ACT funds which the United States Federal Government has disbursed 
to the COUNTY. The COUNTY has, by resolution, created the Lake COUNTY Local 
Government COVID-19 Reimbursement program. This agreement shall remain in 
effect between the parties to govern the form of applications for reimbursement, the 
review of applications, the criteria for reimbursable expenses, the retention of 
documents, and other material terms governing the processing of reimbursement 
applications as outlined in the guidelines provided by the COUNTY to the TAXING 
DISTRICT. 


2.0 Obligations of the COUNTY  
2.1 Generally. The COUNTY, by and through its Finance Department, shall process 


requests for reimbursement received from TAXING DISTRICT subject to the 
requirements set forth herein.  


2.2 Submittal does not guarantee approval. The COUNTY, by receiving and processing 
the reimbursement requests of TAXING DISTRICT, does not guarantee approval of 
the reimbursement requests by the COUNTY, the United States Department of 
Treasury, or the Office of the Inspector General.  


2.3 No further obligations. The COUNTY shall have no further obligations under this 
IGA other than those expressly set forth.  


3.0 Obligations of the TAXING DISTRICT 
3.1 Generally. In order to submit requests for reimbursement of coronavirus emergency 


related expenditures, TAXING DISTRICT agrees to submit the forms, certifications 
and documentation as may be required by the COUNTY for any expense for which 
TAXING DISTRICT seeks reimbursement under this Agreement. TAXING 
DISTRICT agrees that the sole and exclusive decision as to whether or not TAXING 







 


DISTRICT’s request is granted lies within the discretion of the COUNTY, and that 
submission of expenses for reimbursement does not obligate the COUNTY to agree to 
reimburse those expenses. TAXING DISTRICT agrees that the COUNTY, through its 
Finance Department, may deny reimbursement for expenses which, in the discretion of 
the Chief Financial Officer, are not permitted uses for CARES ACT funds. The parties 
also agree that expenses that may be otherwise eligible for reimbursement may be 
rejected by the COUNTY in its sole discretion, that the COUNTY is under no 
obligation to approve any particular reimbursement request, and that reimbursement is 
also subject to the availability of funds. 


4.0 Form of Expense Submittals, Certification, failure to use form or comply with criteria 
4.1 Generally. The Parties agree that expenses for which TAXING DISTRICT seeks 


reimbursement shall be submitted upon the forms and in the manner as may be required 
by the COUNTY. TAXING DISTRICT agrees to utilize these forms exclusively in 
seeking reimbursement of expenses related to the coronavirus emergency.  


4.2 Certification. By entering into this IGA the Mayor, President,  CFO or City Manager 
or other authorized official certifies that the expenses for which TAXING DISTRICT 
seeks reimbursement: (i) are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health 
emergency with response to the Coronavirus Disease 2019, (ii) were not accounted for 
in the most recently approved budget of the TAXING DISTRICT, as of March 27, 
2020, (iii) were incurred during the period between March 1, 2020 and December 30, 
2020, and (iv) meet the criteria set forth in the United States Department of Treasury 
guidelines and interpretations, both current and as they may be amended and 
supplemented in the future.  


4.3 Failure to use form or attach certification. The failure by TAXING DISTRICT to 
use the required forms or to accompany each and every reimbursement request with a 
completed certification, shall lead to the summary rejection of that submittal by the 
COUNTY.  


4.4 Failure to comply with Department of Treasury Guidelines and Interpretations. 
The COUNTY reserves the right to reject any reimbursement which it determines, in 
its sole and exclusive discretion, does not meet the criteria of the CARES ACT or 
United States Department of Treasury guidelines and interpretations, both current and 
as may be amended and supplemented in the future, associated with disbursement of 
funds under the CARES ACT.  


4.5 TAXING DISTRICT shall not submit for reimbursement to the COUNTY any expense 
which the TAXING DISTRICT has submitted or will submit to any other entity, 
whether public or private, for reimbursement. Should TAXING DISTRICT at any time 
receive reimbursement for any expense for which the COUNTY has already 
reimbursed the MUNCIPALITY under this IGA, the TAXING DISTRICT shall within 
14 days or at the next scheduled municipal meeting occurring thereafter authorize and 
refund that reimbursement to the COUNTY. 


5.0 Reimbursement guidelines; prohibition on duplicate reimbursement. 
5.1 Reimbursement guidelines will be provided to TAXING DISTRICT that will include 


details specific to maximum reimbursement funding and allocation method, allowable 
expenses, required documentation and format of submittal, submission deadlines, 







 


reporting requirements, compliance audit information, and records retention, among 
other guidance. 


5.1.1 The reimbursement guidelines may be updated based on additional 
information received by COUNTY, or if additional funding is allocated. 


5.2 TAXING DISTRICT shall not be entitled to reimbursement of expenses on application 
to the County for which it has sought and received reimbursement from any other 
entity, whether public or private, as described in 4.2, above.  


6.0 Cooperation   
6.1 The COUNTY shall assist TAXING DISTRICT in complying with the requirements 


of the CARES Act and the United States Department of Treasury guidelines by 
preparing sample forms and providing feedback and guidance with regards to the type 
and quality of information required to complete such forms.  


6.2 TAXING DISTRICT agrees to abide by the terms of the CARES Act and all United 
States Department of Treasury guidelines and interpretations, both current and as may 
be amended and supplemented in the future. 


6.3 TAXING DISTRICT shall, at the COUNTY’s request, supply COUNTY with all 
relevant information for the COUNTY to evaluate whether a request for reimbursement 
meets the criteria under the CARES Act and United States Department of Treasury 
guidelines, both current and as may be amended and supplemented in the future.  


7.0 Records 
7.1 TAXING DISTRICT shall maintain all records relating to the expenses which 


TAXING DISTRICT seeks to have reimbursed by COUNTY from CARES Act funds 
for a period of at least ten (10) years or the period of time required by other state or 
federal law, whichever is longer. 


7.2 At any time, the COUNTY may request that the TAXING DISTRICT provide records 
relating to the expenses which TAXING DISTRICT seeks to have reimbursed. 
TAXING DISTRICT agrees to provide records within 14 days in response to such 
requests.  


7.3 Failure to provide records may result in the denial of the reimbursement request. In 
circumstances where the reimbursement request has been granted and the records are 
needed to justify the reimbursement to the Office of the Inspector General or any other 
office, official, or department which may later become responsible for auditing 
disbursements of CARES Act funds, failure by TAXING DISTRICT to provide these 
records, for any reason including the prior destruction of these records, shall constitute 
a breach of this Agreement. The sole and exclusive remedy for such a breach is that 
TAXING DISTRICT shall be responsible for repayment of any disbursement which 
the Office of Inspector General, or its successor, finds improper, unsupported, or unable 
to be verified within the time limit set by the Office of Inspector General. The TAXING 
DISTRICT shall make said repayment on or before the COUNTY is required to 
reimburse the federal government for such improper, unsupported, or unverified 
expense. Additionally, TAXING DISTRICT agrees to indemnify the COUNTY or 
make the COUNTY whole for any penalty assessed against the COUNTY based upon 
TAXING DISTRICT’s failure to retain or provide records.  


8.0 Timeliness.  







 


8.1 The Parties agree that time is of the essence in the processing of applications for 
reimbursement. The COUNTY shall use all reasonable speed and diligence in the 
processing of applications for reimbursement.  


8.2 The Parties agree that time is of the essence in communications seeking supporting 
documents or requesting records under this agreement. The Parties agree that they shall 
use all reasonable speed and diligence in responding to requests for records or 
supporting documents.  


9.0 Indemnity.  
9.1 The Parties agree that where the COUNTY may rely upon the certification of the 


TAXING DISTRICT that such expenses which TAXING DISTRICT sought to have 
reimbursed from CARES Act funds met the minimum requirements of the CARES Act, 
and where the Office of the Inspector General, or any other person, official, or 
department which is charged with the auditing and review of expenditures of CARES 
Act funds determines that such reimbursement was not permitted under the CARES 
Act, TAXING DISTRICT agrees to indemnify, reimburse  and make whole the 
COUNTY for any funds which the United States Government or its agencies seeks to 
recoup or collect, either by litigation, or by withholding other federal funds owed to the 
COUNTY. TAXING DISTRICT further agrees to indemnify, reimburse, or make 
whole the COUNTY for any penalties associated with the federal government seeking 
to recoup the expended CARES Act funds which the COUNTY disbursed to TAXING 
DISTRICT including interest, attorneys fees or any penalty provided by law. 
Additionally, TAXING DISTRICT agrees to indemnify the COUNTY or make the 
COUNTY whole for any penalty assessed against the COUNTY based upon TAXING 
DISTRICT’s duplication of reimbursements as provided in Article 5.2 above. TAXING 
DISTRICT also agrees to indemnify the COUNTY for any other loss or damage due to 
TAXING DISTRICT’s violation of this IGA. 


9.2 TAXING DISTRICT agrees to hold COUNTY harmless for any evaluation or advice 
which the COUNTY provided to TAXING DISTRICT as to whether the requested 
reimbursement is a permissible use of the CARES Act funds.  


10.0 Term and termination 
10.1 Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect until December 30, 2020 unless 


earlier terminated by either party provides written notice of termination to the other. 
Such notice shall be effective 14 days after receipt of the termination.  


10.2  Survival of Terms. Those terms relating to the party’s obligation to maintain 
records and provide records, and the TAXING DISTRICT’s indemnification of the 
COUNTY shall survive the termination of this Agreement.   


11.0 General Terms and Conditions 
11.1 Amendment. Any revision to this Agreement shall be made by written amendment 


to this Agreement. This Agreement, including exhibits attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, represents the entire Agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior communications, 
agreements, and understandings relating thereto.  


11.2 Assignment. The  performance covered by this Agreement shall not be assigned or 
delegated without the prior written consent of the COUNTY.   







 


11.3 Conflict of Interest. No officer, employee, elected or appointed officials of the 
COUNTY or the TAXING DISTRICT (and no one with whom they have family or 
business ties) shall obtain any personal or financial benefit of the funds to be 
administered herein 


11.4 Notices. Any notice under this IGA shall be sent by email to the following 
individuals at the indicated email addresses:  
 
To the COUNTY: 
Patrice Sutton, Chief Financial Officer, County of Lake at psutton@lakecountyil.gov 
 
To the TAXING DISTRICT: 
(name/title/email address) 
 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY and the TAXING DISTRICT have executed this 
Agreement as of the date first above written. 


 
COUNTY OF LAKE (TAXING DISTRICT) 
 
        
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
County Administrator, Lake County   Authorized Signature 
 
       ____________________________________
       Printed Name  
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________    __________________________ 
Lake County Clerk     Clerk 
 








ILLINOIS PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT (IPLAR)    2020
BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT    


IPLAR


IDENTIFICATION (1.1 - 1.31)


This section is information about the administrative entity. "Administrative Entity" is defined as the agency that is legally established
under local or state law to provide public library service to the population of a local jurisdiction. The administrative entity may have a
single outlet or it may have more than one outlet (an outlet is a location, whether a central library, branch or bookmobile). The majority
of the information in this section is pre-filled. If information needs to be updated, enter the corrected information in the box provided on
the next line of the survey.


1.1  ISL Control # [PLSC 151, PLSC 701] 30032
1.2  ISL Branch # [PLSC 151, PLSC 701] 0
1.3a  FSCS ID [PLSC 150, PLSC 700] IL0032
1.3b  FSCS_SEQ [PLSC 700] 002
1.4a  Legal Name of Library [PLSC 152] Barrington Public Library District
1.4b  If the library's name has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.4c  Was this an official name change?
1.5a  Facility Street Address [PLSC 153] 505 North Northwest Highway
1.5b  If the facility's street address has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.5c  Was this a physical location change?
1.6a  Facility City [PLSC 154] Barrington
1.6b  If the facility's city has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.7a  Facility Zip [PLSC 155] 60010
1.7b  If the facility's zip code has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.8a  Mailing Address [PLSC 157] 505 North Northwest Highway
1.8b  If the facility's mailing address has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.9a  Mailing City [PLSC 158] Barrington
1.9b  If the facility's mailing city has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.10a  Mailing Zip [PLSC 159] 60010
1.10b  If the facility's mailing zip code has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.11a  Library Telephone Number [PLSC 162] (847) 382-1300
1.11b  If the telephone number has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.12a  Library FAX Number (847) 382-1261
1.12b  If the fax number has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.13  Website http://balibrary.org


Library Director's Information


Please enter the full name, title and e-mail address of the library director.


1.14  Name Jesse Henning
1.15  Title Executive Director
1.16  Library Director's E-mail jhenning@balibrary.org


Library Information


Please provide the requested information about the library type.


1.17a  Type of library
1.17b  If the library type has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.18  Is the main library a combined public and school library?
1.19  Does your library contract with another library to RECEIVE ALL your library services?


 


 


District
 
No
No







Contract for Services


Please provide the full legal name(s) of the library(ies) with which your library contracts for service. If you need more than one line, a
new one will appear once text has been entered in the first box.


Number of contracting libraries:
 
Legal name of library you contract with:


Administrative Information


Libraries are required by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(5), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(2)] to provide a statement as to any extensions of library
service or any changes to the limits or boundaries of library service areas. Most of the information in this section will be pre-filled. If the
information is incorrect, please enter the updated information in the box provided on the next line of the survey. If your library has had a
population change, you must submit official verification to the Illinois State Library.


1.21a  County in which the administrative entity is located [PLSC 161] Lake
1.21b  If the administrative entity's county has changed, then enter the updated answer here.
1.22a  Did the administrative entity's legal service area boundaries change during the past year?
[PLSC 205]
1.22b  IF YES, indicate the reason for the boundary change
1.23a  Population residing in tax base (Use the latest official federal census figure) [PLSC 208] 44,157
1.23b  If the population residing in the tax base has had a LEGAL change, then enter the updated
answer here.
1.23c  Documentation of legal population change
1.24  If the population has changed from the prior year's answer, then indicate the reason.
1.25a  This library is currently a member of what Illinois library system?
1.25b  If the library's system has changed, then enter the updated answer here.


Federal Public Library Criteria


According to the Institute of Museum and Library Services' Public Library Survey, a public library is an entity that is established under
state enabling laws or regulations to serve a community, district, or region, and that provides at least the following:
1. An organized collection of printed or other library materials, or a combination thereof;
2. Paid staff;
3. An established schedule in which services of the staff are available to the public;
4. The facilities necessary to support such a collection, staff, and schedule; and 
5. Is supported in whole or in part with public funds.


1.26  Does this library have an organized collection of printed or other library materials, or a
combination thereof?
1.27  Does this library have paid staff?
1.28  Does this library have an established schedule in which services of the staff are available to
the public?
1.29  Does the library have the facilities necessary to support such a collection, staff, and
schedule?
1.30  Is this library supported in whole or in part with public funds?
1.31  Does this public library meet ALL the criteria of the PLSC public library definition? [PLSC
203]


No


 


 
RAILS
 


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







SERVICE OUTLETS (2.1 - 2.14)


This section gathers information about the service outlets (centrals, branches, bookmobiles) of your library. If you do not have service
locations beyond the central library, this section will not open for completion. Locations can only be added to this survey by State Library
staff. If you have a branch or bookmobile and do not see its name listed in question 2.3a, please contact Pat Burg (217-785-1168,
pburg@ilsos.gov) so that it can be added.


2.1a  Total number of bookmobiles [PLSC 211 & PLSC 712] 0 
2.1b  Total number of branch libraries [PLSC 210] 0 
2.2a  Are any of the branch libraries a combined public and school library?
2.2b  If YES, provide the name of the branch or branches in the box provided.


ANNUAL REPORT DATA (3.1 - 3.7)


Please enter the time period covered by this annual report and the name and contact information for the person preparing the report.
The report period should cover the time from the end of the previous IPLAR through the end of your most current fiscal year. If your
library switched to a new fiscal year during the latest period, this may mean that your report needs to cover more or less than a twelve
(12) month period.


3.1  Fiscal Year Start Date (mm/dd/year) [PLSC 206] 07/01/2019 
3.2  Fiscal Year End Date (mm/dd/year) [PLSC 207] 06/30/2020 
3.3  Number of months in this fiscal year 12 
3.4  Name of person preparing this annual report Jesse Henning 
3.5  Telephone Number of Person Preparing Report 847-382-1300 
3.6  FAX Number -1 No Fax
3.7  E-Mail Address jhenning@balibrary.org 


REFERENDA (4.1 - 4.11)


Please enter information regarding any referenda the library was involved in during the fiscal year report period. A referendum is a
particular issue that is taken to the public for a vote. Examples are: bond issue, district establishment, tax increase.


4.1a  Was your library involved in a referendum during the fiscal year reporting period?  
4.1b  How many referenda was your library involved in?  


Referendum 1


 4.2  Referendum
Type


4.3  If Other, what was the
referendum type?


4.4  Referendum Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.5  Passed
or Failed?


4.6  Effective Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.7  Referendum ballot
language documentation


Referendum 2


 4.2  Referendum
Type


4.3  If Other, what was the
referendum type?


4.4  Referendum Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.5  Passed
or Failed?


4.6  Effective Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.7  Referendum ballot
language documentation


Referendum 3


 4.2  Referendum
Type


4.3  If Other, what was the
referendum type?


4.4  Referendum Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.5  Passed
or Failed?


4.6  Effective Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.7  Referendum ballot
language documentation


Referendum 4


 4.2  Referendum 4.3  If Other, what was the 4.4  Referendum Date 4.5  Passed 4.6  Effective Date 4.7  Referendum ballot


 


No
 


  


  


  







Type referendum type? (mm/dd/year) or Failed? (mm/dd/year) language documentation


Referendum 5


 4.2  Referendum
Type


4.3  If Other, what was the
referendum type?


4.4  Referendum Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.5  Passed
or Failed?


4.6  Effective Date
(mm/dd/year)


4.7  Referendum ballot
language documentation


Board Action and Backdoor Referenda


If, during the fiscal year report period, the library board took action to a) convert to public library district status by approval of the
corporate authority [75 ILCS 16/10-15]; and/or b) the public library district annexed additional territory in an unincorporated area by
backdoor referendum [75 ILCS 16/15-5, et seq.]; and/or c) your public library district took any other action by backdoor referendum,
indicate the effective date of the action. "Backdoor referendum" means the submission of a public question to the voters of a
governmental unit, initiated by a petition of voters, residents or property owners of such governmental unit, to determine whether an
action by the governing body of such governmental unit shall be effective, adopted or rejected.


4.8  District Conversion - Effective Date (mm/dd/year)
4.9  Territory Annexation - Effective Date (mm/dd/year)
4.10a  Other Action by Backdoor Referendum (please specify)
4.10b  Other - Effective Date (mm/dd/year)
4.11a  Other Action by Backdoor Referendum (please specify)
4.11b  Other - Effective Date (mm/dd/year)


CURRENT LIBRARY BOARD (5.1 - 5.13)


Please report the number of board seats and the number of vacancies. Be sure to provide current board member information; including
name, position, telephone number, e-mail address, home address, and term expiration date. If there are vacancies, please explain.


All personal identifying information is FOIA exempt and will NOT be released to the public. The only information that the Illinois State
Library will release upon request is the board member name, trustee position and term expiration date.


Report the most current information available.


5.1  Total number of board seats  
5.2  Total number of vacant board seats 0 
5.2b  Please explain
5.3  This public library board of trustees attests that the current board is legally established,
organized, and the terms of office for library trustees are all unexpired.  


5.4  IF NO, please explain


First Member


5.5  Name Carrie F. Carr
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year) 05/2025
5.8  Telephone Number 847-381-8806
5.9  E-mail Address ccarr@balibrary.org
5.10  Home Address 245 Bellingham Drive
5.11  City Barrington
5.12  State IL
5.13  Zip Code 60010


Second member


  


  


7


Yes


Treasurer







Second member


5.5  Name Donald F. Minner
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year) 05/2023
5.8  Telephone Number 847-304-4221
5.9  E-mail Address dminner@balibrary.org
5.10  Home Address 21450 Crestview Drive
5.11  City Barrington
5.12  State IL
5.13  Zip Code 60010


Third member


5.5  Name Carolyn Welch Clifford
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year) 05/2025
5.8  Telephone Number 847-382-4249
5.9  E-mail Address cclifford@balibrary.org
5.10  Home Address 52 Verne Circle
5.11  City Barrington
5.12  State IL
5.13  Zip Code 60010


Fourth member


5.5  Name Jennifer Lucas
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year) 05/2021
5.8  Telephone Number 847-754-9255
5.9  E-mail Address jlucas@balibrary.org
5.10  Home Address 1505 Lake Shore Drive S
5.11  City Barrington
5.12  State IL
5.13  Zip Code 60074


Fifth member


5.5  Name William J. Pizzi
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year) 05/2023
5.8  Telephone Number 847-842-1364
5.9  E-mail Address wpizzi@balibrary.org
5.10  Home Address 164 Harbor Drive
5.11  City Lake Barrington
5.12  State IL
5.13  Zip Code 60010


Sixth member


President


Vice-President


Other


Other







Sixth member


5.5  Name Denise Tenyer
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year) 05/2021
5.8  Telephone Number 847-381-1775
5.9  E-mail Address dtenyer@balibrary.org
5.10  Home Address 1019 Division Street
5.11  City Barrington
5.12  State IL
5.13  Zip Code 60010


Seventh member


5.5  Name Jan Miller
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year) 05/2025
5.8  Telephone Number 847-505-8835
5.9  E-mail Address jmiller@balibrary.org
5.10  Home Address 445 Red Barn Ln.
5.11  City Barrington
5.12  State IL
5.13  Zip Code 60010


Eighth member


5.5  Name
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year)
5.8  Telephone Number
5.9  E-mail Address
5.10  Home Address
5.11  City
5.12  State
5.13  Zip Code


Ninth member


5.5  Name
5.6  Trustee Position
5.7  Present Term Ends (mm/year)
5.8  Telephone Number
5.9  E-mail Address
5.10  Home Address
5.11  City
5.12  State
5.13  Zip Code


Secretary


Other


 


 







FACILITY/FACILITIES (6.1-6.4)


Please provide the requested information about the library's facilities.


6.1a  Total square footage of the main library building [PLSC 711] 60,000
6.1b  If the main library's square footage has changed, then enter the updated answer here.  
6.1c  Indicate the reason for the change/variance in square footage for this annual report as
compared to the previous annual report.  


6.2a  Does the library address the environmental needs of patrons on the autism spectrum?  
6.2b  If so, please describe
6.3a  Total Number of Meeting Rooms 3 
6.3b  Total number of times meeting room(s) used by the public during the fiscal year 510 
6.4a  Total Number of Study Rooms 9 
6.4b  Total number of times study room(s) used by the public during the fiscal year 7,334 


ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (7.1 - 7.13)


The below sections request information regarding property, fiscal accumulations and outstanding liabilities. These sections are required
by statute [ [75 ILCS 5/4-10, 75 ILCS 16/30-65] to be included in the annual report. Please provide the requested information in each
section.


Property


Libraries are required by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(4), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(3)] to provide a statement as to property acquired through
legacy, purchase, gift or otherwise. Please provide this information in the section below.


7.1  What is the estimated current fair market value for the library's real estate (land and
buildings including garages, sheds, etc.)? $20,042,082 


7.2  During the last fiscal year, did the library acquire any real and/or personal property?  


IF YES, how much of the property was acquired through the following options? (Enter dollar amount for each option 7.3-7.6 that applies)


7.3  Purchase  
7.4  Legacy  
7.5  Gift  
7.6  Other  
7.7  Provide a general description of the property acquired.


Fiscal Accumulations


Libraries are required by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(7), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(4)] to provide a statement as to the amount of any fiscal
accumulations and the reasons for the accumulations. Please provide this information in the section below.


7.8  Does your library have fiscal accumulations (reserve funds, outstanding fund balances, etc.)?  


7.9  IF YES, then provide a statement that details the dollar amount(s) and the reason(s) for the
fiscal accumulations.


General Fund - $5,315,113 - Accumulated for operating
reserve. IMRF Fund - $463,020 - Not levied in TY2020,
spending balance down to reach 50% reserve. Audit Fund -
$2,026 - Not levied in TY2020, will be fully spent in FY21
Special Reserve Fund - $1,715,444 - Held to support the
Capital Repairs Plan Building Fund - $587,106 - Held to
support the Capital Repairs Plan Insurance Fund - $19,133
- Change to insurance carrier resulted in savings and
accumulated levied funds.


Liabilities


No


No


Yes







ab t es


Libraries are required by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(8), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(5)] to provide a statement as to any outstanding liabilities,
including for bonds still outstanding. Please provide this information in the section below.


7.10  Does your library have any outstanding liabilities including bonds, judgments, settlements,
etc.?  


7.11  IF YES, what is the total amount of the outstanding liabilities?  
7.12  IF YES, then prepare a statement that identifies each outstanding liability and its specific
dollar amount.


OPERATING RECEIPTS BY SOURCE (8.1 - 8.21)


Libraries are required by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(1)(9), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(6)] to provide an itemized statement of operating
receipts. "Operating receipts" are the monies received and utilized during the library's fiscal year to support the provision of ongoing,
day-to-day library services. Only include funds received during the report period. If the library was awarded a grant, but only received
part of the funds during the report period, report only the portion of the grant received, not the whole amount of the grant.


Exclude revenue for major capital expenditures, contributions to endowments, revenue passed through to another agency, funds unspent
in previous fiscal years (e.g. carryover), and tax anticipation warrants.


NOTE: Round answers to the nearest whole dollar.


Local Government


This includes all local government funds designated by the community, district, or region and available for expenditure by the public
library. For example, include receipts from: local property taxes (library taxes), impact fees (IL Highway Code), the Mobile Home Local
Services Tax Act. Do not include the value of any contributed or in-kind services or the value of any gifts and donations, library fines,
fees, or grants. Do not include state, federal, and other funds passed through local government for library use. Report these funds with
state government revenue or federal government revenue, as appropriate.


8.1  Local government [PLSC 300] (includes all local government funds designated by the
community, district, or region and available for expenditure by the public library, except capital
income from bond sales which must be reported in 12.1a only)


$7,324,469 


8.1a  Is this library's annual tax levy/fiscal appropriation subject to tax caps [the Property Tax
Extension Limitation Law, 35 ILCS 200/18-185, et seq.]?
8.1b  Local government funds for the ensuing or upcoming/current fiscal year (includes all local
government funds designated by the community, district, or region and available for expenditure
by the public library, except capital income from bond sales.)  1


$0 


State Government


These are all funds distributed to public libraries by state government for expenditure by the public libraries, except for
federal money distributed by the state. This includes funds from such sources as penal fines, license fees, and mineral rights.


Note: If operating revenue from consolidated taxes is the result of state legislation, the revenue should be reported under state revenue
(even though the revenue may be from multiple sources).


If you are not sure if funds you received through the State of Illinois are federal of state funds, please contact Pat Burg (217-785-1168,
pburg@ilsos.gov).


8.2  Per capita grant $55,196 
8.3  Equalization aid grant $0 
8.4  Personal property replacement tax $50,161 
8.5  Other State Government funds received $0 


No


Yes







8.6  If Other, please specify -1 Not Applicable
8.7  Total State Government Funds (8.2 + 8.3 + 8.4 + 8.5) [PLSC 301] $105,357 


Federal Government


This includes all federal government funds distributed to public libraries for expenditure by the public libraries, including federal money
distributed by the State of Illinois (e.g., LSTA grants paid directly to your library). 


If you are unsure if the funds you received through the State of Illinois were federal or state funds, please contact Pat Burg (217-785-
1168, pburg@ilsos.gov).


8.8  LSTA funds received $0 
8.9  E-Rate funds received $0 
8.10  Other federal funds received $0 
8.11  If Other, please specify -1 Not Applicable
8.12  Total Federal Government Funds (8.8 + 8.9 + 8.10) [PLSC 302] $0 


Other Income


This is all operating revenue other than that reported under local, state, and federal funds. Include, for example, monetary gifts and
donations received in the current year, interest, library fines, fees for library services,
or grants. Do not include the value of any contributed or in-kind services or the value of any non-monetary gifts and donations.


8.13  Monetary Gifts and Donations $1,135 
8.14  Other receipts intended to be used for operating expenditures $260,496 
8.15  TOTAL all other receipts (8.13 + 8.14) [PLSC 303] $261,631 
8.16  Other non-capital receipts placed in reserve funds $0 


Total Operating Receipts


8.17  TOTAL receipts ( 8.1 + 8.7 + 8.12 + 8.15) [PLSC 304] $7,691,457 


Safeguarding of Library Funds


This section requests information to verify that libraries meet the statutory required minimum level of insurance for library funds [75
ILCS 5/4-9 and 75 ILCS 16/30-45(e)]. According to these statutes, “the library shall provide the Illinois State Library a copy of the
library’s certificate of insurance at the time the library’s annual report is filed.”


For municipalities of less than 500,000 population, 75 ILCS 5/4-9 requires that the bond be "...not less than 50% of the total funds
received by the library in the last fiscal year...," or the insurance policy or other insurance instrument's coverage "...shall be in an
amount at least equal to 50% of the average amount of the library's operating fund from the prior 3 fiscal years."


For public library districts, 75 ILCS 16/30-45(e) requires that the bond be "...based upon a minimum of 50% of the total funds received
by the district in the last previous fiscal year...," or the insurance policy or other insurance instrument's coverage "... shall be in an
amount at least equal to 50% of the average amount of the district's operating fund from the prior 3 fiscal years."


8.18a  The library safeguards its funds using which option?  
8.18b  Proof of Certificate of Insurance for Library Funds
8.19  What is the coverage amount of either the surety bond OR the insurance policy/insurance
instrument? $3,778,543 


8.20  Is the amount of the surety bond, insurance policy or other insurance instrument in
compliance with library law?  


8.21  The designated custodian of the library's funds is:  


Surety Bond


Yes


Library Treasurer







OPERATING EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY (9.1 - 11.2)


Libraries are required by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(2), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(6)] to provide an itemized statement as to how operating
revenues have been expended during the fiscal year report period. "Operating expenditures" are the current and recurrent costs
necessary to support the provision of library services.


Include: Significant costs, especially benefits and salaries, that are paid by other taxing agencies (government agencies with the
authority to levy tax) "on behalf of" the library may be included if the information is available to the reporting agency. Only such funds
that are supported by expenditure documents (such as invoices, contracts, payroll records, etc.) at the point of disbursement should be
included.


Exclude: Do not report the value of free items, estimated costs, and capital expenditures.


NOTE: Round answers to the nearest whole dollar.


STAFF EXPENDITURES (9.1-9.3)


This section gathers information on staff benefits and salaries. If the information is available, include benefits and salaries for staff that
are paid by other taxing agencies (government agencies with the authority to levy tax) "on behalf of" the library. 


NOTE: Round answers to the nearest whole dollar.


9.1  Salaries and wages for all library staff [PLSC 350] $2,988,373 
9.2a  Fringe benefits, for all library staff, paid for from either the library's or the municipal
corporate authority's appropriation [PLSC 351] $777,712 


9.2b  If this library answered question 9.2a as zero, please select an explanation from the drop-
down box.  


9.3  Total Staff Expenditures (9.1 + 9.2) [PLSC 352] $3,766,085 


COLLECTION EXPENDITURES (10.1 - 10.4)


Include expenditures for all materials in all formats (e.g., print, microform, electronic) whether purchased, leased or licensed. Exclude
charges or fees for interlibrary loans and expenditures for document delivery.


NOTE: Round answers to the nearest whole dollar.


10.1  Printed Materials (books, newspapers, etc.) [PLSC 353] $194,554 
10.2  Electronic Materials (e-books, databases, etc.) [PLSC 354] $549,462 
10.3a  Other Materials (CDs, DVDs, video games, etc.) [PLSC 355] $102,497 
10.3b  Please provide an explanation of the other types of material expenditures. DVD, Music CD, Audiobook, Circulating Kit, Video Games 
10.4  TOTAL Collection Expenditures (10.1 + 10.2 + 10.3) [PLSC 356] $846,513 


OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES (11.1 - 11.2)


This includes all expenditures other than those reported for Staff Expenditures and Collection Expenditures. 
Exclude purchases of major fixed assets, which should be reported in capital expenditures (12.7).


NOTE: Round answers to the nearest whole dollar.


11.1  All other operating expenditures not included above (supplies, utilities, legal fees, etc.)
[PLSC 357] $1,350,204 


11.2  TOTAL operating expenditures (9.3 + 10.4 + 11.1) [PLSC 358] $5,962,802 


 







CAPITAL REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES (12.1 - 12.7)


This section gathers information on capital revenue and expenditures. Provide information for funds received and spent during the fiscal
year report period only. If the library was awarded a grant, but only received part of the funds during the report period, report only the
amount of the funds received, not the entire grant award.


Capital Revenue


Include funds received during the fiscal year report period for: site acquisitions; new building(s); additions to or renovations of existing
buildings; furnishings, equipment, and initial collections for new buildings, building additions, or building renovations; computer
hardware and software used to support library operations, to link to networks, or to run information products; new vehicles; or other
one-time major projects.


Exclude revenue for: replacement and/or repair of existing furnishings and equipment, regular purchase of library materials,
investments for capital appreciation, income passed through to another agency (e.g., fines), and funds unspent in previous fiscal year
(e.g., carryover).


NOTE: Round answers to the nearest whole dollar.


12.1a  Local Government: Capital Income from Bond Sales $0 
12.1b  Local Government: Other $0 
12.1c  Total Local Government (12.1a + 12.1b) [PLSC 400] $0 
12.2  State Government [PLSC 401] $0 
12.3  Federal Government [PLSC 402] $0 
12.4  Other Capital Revenue [PLSC 403] $0 
12.5  If Other, please specify -1 Not Applicable
12.6  Total Capital Revenue (12.1c + 12.2 + 12.3 + 12.4) [PLSC 404] $0 


Capital Expenditures


Include funds expended during the fiscal year report period for: site acquisitions; new building(s); additions to or renovations of existing
buildings; furnishings, equipment, and initial collections for new buildings, building additions, or building renovations; computer
hardware and software used to support library operations, to link to networks, or to run information products; new vehicles; or other
one-time major projects.


Exclude expenditures for: replacement and/or repair of existing furnishings and equipment, regular purchase of library materials,
investments for capital appreciation, income passed through to another agency (e.g., fines), and funds unspent in previous fiscal year
(e.g., carryover).


NOTE: Round answers to the nearest whole dollar.


12.7  Total Capital Expenditures [PLSC 405] $1,690,854 







PERSONNEL (13.1 - 13.46)


Include all positions funded in the library's budget whether those positions are filled or not. Report position figures as of the last day of
the fiscal year. Include only paid employees. Do NOT include volunteers. 


Report personnel in the appropriate categories based on the type of library work being performed rather than on an employee's
educational qualifications.


The FTE (full-time equivalent/employee) calculator utilizes the IMLS/PLSC national standard for a full-time work week as 40 hours per
week. Illinois libraries should report each staff member's hours per week based on the number of hours worked. If your library considers
35-39+ hours per week as a full-time work week, then report using those figures. DO NOT inflate the hours your library considers as a
full-time work week in order to force the resulting calculation to equal 1 FTE. For national comparison purposes, your library must report
the total hours per week based on your local standard. For example, for an Illinois library that considers 37.5 hours per week as a full-
time work week, the FTE calculation reported nationally will be .9375 or .94 rather than 1.00.


Group A


This category includes all LIBRARIANS with MASTER'S DEGREES from an American Library Association (ALA) ACCREDITED program of
Library and Information Studies. Another row will automatically appear once data is entered in the current row.


Summary 19 19 $656.03 712.50
 13.1  Position Title 13.2  Primary Work Area 13.3  Hourly Rate 13.4  Total Hours/Week


Youth Services Librarian $29.25 37.50
Youth Services Librarian $27.86 37.50
Youth Services Librarian $27.33 37.50
Youth Services Librarian $26.72 37.50
Youth Services Librarian $26.58 37.50
Head of Youth Services $35.62 37.50
Adult Services Librarian $29.17 37.50
Adult Services Librarian $37.97 37.50
Adult Services Librarian $31.30 37.50
Adult Services Librarian $26.26 37.50
Adult Services Librarian $27.37 37.50
Adult Services Librarian $28.20 37.50
Head of Adult Services $35.56 37.50
Technical Services Librarian $37.73 37.50
Technical Services Librarian $30.77 37.50
Head of Technical Services $49.40 37.50
Digital Services Manager $36.54 37.50
Head of Operations $45.81 37.50
Executive Director $66.59 37.50


Group A Total


13.5  Total Group A: FTE ALA-MLS (13.4 / 40) [PLSC 250] 17.81 


Group A hidden group hours


Children\'s Services
Children\'s Services
Children\'s Services
Children\'s Services
Children\'s Services
Children\'s Services
Adult Services
Adult Services
Adult Services
Adult Services
Adult Services
Adult Services
Adult Services
Cataloging
Cataloging
Cataloging
Automation/Technology/Systems
Assistant Library Director
Library Director







Group B


This category includes other librarians. Include employees with the TITLE of LIBRARIAN who either have other types of library education
(non-American Library Association (ALA) accredited library degrees; undergraduate library science majors or minors) OR do paid work
that usually requires professional training and skill in the theoretical or scientific aspects of library work, or both, as distinct from its
mechanical or clerical aspects. Another row will automatically appear once data is entered in the current row.


Summary
 13.6  Position Title 13.7  Primary Work Area 13.8  Education Level 13.9  Hourly Rate 13.10  Total Hours/Week


Group B Total


13.11  Total Group B: FTE Other Librarians (13.10/40)  
13.12  Total FTE Librarians (13.5 + 13.11] [PLSC 251] 17.81 


Group C


This category includes full-time and part-time professional staff without the title of librarian and administrative support specialists
(personnel director, business manager, public relations, other non-library specialists), information technology professionals (IT director,
webmaster) and other technical and clerical employees.


13.13  Total hours worked in a typical week by all Group C employees 1,333.50 
13.14  Minimum hourly rate actually paid $13.30 
13.15  Maximum hourly rate actually paid $43.13 
13.16  Total FTE Group C employees (13.13 / 40) 33.34 


Group D


This category includes full-time and part-time pages or shelvers.


13.17  Total hours worked in a typical week by all Group D employees 195.50 
13.18  Minimum hourly rate actually paid $10.15 
13.19  Maximum hourly rate actually paid $12.40 
13.20  Total FTE Group D employees (13.17 / 40) 4.89 


Group E


This category includes full-time and part-time building maintenance, security or plant operation employees.


13.21  Total hours worked in a typical week by all Group E employees 126.50 
13.22  Minimum hourly rate actually paid $15.76 
13.23  Maximum hourly rate actually paid $32.51 
13.24  Total FTE Group E employees (13.21 / 40) 3.16 
13.25  Total FTE Other Paid Employees from Groups C, D, and E (13.16 + 13.20 + 13.24) [PLSC
252] 41.39 


13.26  Total FTE Paid Employees (13.12 + 13.25) [PLSC 253] 59.20 


Librarian Vacancies


Include only those budgeted librarian positions vacant on the last day of this fiscal year for which there was an active search while the
position remained vacant. Another row will automatically appear once data is entered in the current row.


Summary


  







 13.27  Position
Title


13.28  Primary Work
Area


13.29  Education Level 13.30  Total
Hours/Week


13.31  Number
of Weeks
Vacant during
report period.


13.32  Annual
Salary Range
Minimum


13.33  Annual
Salary Range
Maximum


Newly Created Librarian Positions


Include any newly created librarian positions which were created during the fiscal year reporting period. Another row will automatically
appear once data is entered in the current row.


Summary


 13.34  Position
Title


13.35  Primary Work
Area 13.36  Education Level 13.37  Total


Hours/Week


13.38  Current
Status: Filled or
Unfilled


13.39  Date Filled
(mm/year, if
applicable)


Eliminated Librarian Positions


An eliminated librarian position is one that was budgeted for during the previous fiscal year period but was not in the budget for the
current report period. Another row will automatically appear once data is entered in the current row.


Summary


 13.40  Position
Title


13.41  Primary Work
Area 13.42  Education Level 13.43  Total


Hours/Week


13.44  Date
Eliminated
(mm/year)


13.45  Last
Annual
Salary Paid


13.46  Reason
Eliminated


SERVICE HOURS/LIBRARY VISITS (14.1 - 14.3)


This section collects information on the number of library service hours and visits. Use an actual annual count, if available; otherwise,
calculate an estimate based on a typical week and then multiply by the number of weeks open.


Minor variations in actual public service hours need not be included; however, extensive hours closed to the public due to natural
disasters or other critical events should be excluded from the annual calculation.


14.1a  Total public service hours PER YEAR for the MAIN/CENTRAL LIBRARY [PLSC 713] 2,785 
14.1b  Total public service hours PER YEAR for all BRANCH LIBRARIES & BOOKMOBILES 0 
14.1c  Total scheduled public service hours PER YEAR for ALL SERVICE OUTLETS (14.1a + 14.1b)
[PLSC 500] 2,785 


14.2  Total number of weeks, during the fiscal year, the MAIN/CENTRAL LIBRARY was open for
service to the public [PLSC 714] 38 


14.3  Total annual visits/attendance in the library [PLSC 501] 215,004 


  


   


  







PROGRAMS & ATTENDANCE (15.1 - 15.17)


Programs:
A program is any planned event which introduces the group attending to any of the broad range of library services or activities or which
directly provides information to participants. Programs may cover use of the library, library services, or library tours. Programs may also
provide cultural, recreational, or educational information, often designed to meet a specific social need. Examples of these types of
programs include film showings; lectures; story hours; literacy, English as a second language, citizenship classes; and book discussions.


Count all programs, whether held on- or off-site, that are sponsored or co-sponsored by the library. Exclude programs
sponsored by other groups that use library facilities. If programs are offered as a series, count each program in the series. For example,
a film series offered once a week for eight weeks should be counted as eight programs.


Note: Exclude library activities delivered on a one-to-one basis, rather than to a group, such as one-to-one literacy
tutoring, services to homebound, resume writing assistance, homework assistance, and mentoring activities.


Passive Programs:
A passive program is any planned event for which the patron can participate on their own (instead of at a designated time with a group).
Registration is not required. A staff member may monitor the activity, but may or may not directly interact with the participants.
Examples of these types of events include drop-in craft sessions, library scavenger hunts (when not done as part of a group), etc.


Count all passive programs, whether held on- or off-site, that are sponsored or co-sponsored by the library. Exclude programs sponsored
by other groups that use library facilities. If programs are offered as a series, count each program in the series. 


 15.1  Programs 15.2  Attendance 15.3  Passive Programs 15.4  Passive Program Attendance
Children's 432 18,196 -1 Unknown 3,197 
Young Adult 18 1,046 -1 Unknown -1 Unknown
Other 257 8,309 -1 Unknown 746 
Total 707 27,551  3,943 
15.17a Did the library provide any
special programming for patrons on the
autism spectrum?


 


15.17b Please describe the programming
provided.


The Youth Services department provides a monthly story time designed to be "sensory friendly." The room's
environment is adjusted (lights are dimmed), participants are provided with fidget toys, and staff use social
stories throughout the program.


REGISTERED USERS (16.1 - 16.4)


This section collects information about the number of resident and non-resident library users. A registered user is a library user who has
applied for and received an identification number or card from the public library that has established conditions under which the user
may borrow library materials and gain access to other library resources. 


Note: Files should have been purged within the past three (3) years.


16.1  Total Number of Unexpired Resident Users Cards 24,826 
16.2a  Total Number of Unexpired Non-resident Users Cards  2 31 
16.2b  What was the total amount of the fees collected from the sale of non-resident user's cards
during the past fiscal year? $1,158.34 


16.3  Total Number of Registered Users (16.1 + 16.2a) [PLSC 503] 24,857 
16.4  Is your library's registered user/patron file purged a minimum of one time every three
years?  


Yes


Yes







RESOURCES OWNED (17.1 - 17.9)


Libraries are required by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(3), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(6)] to provide a statement as to the number and character of
items in the library's collection available for use as of the last day of the fiscal year report period.


This section of the survey collects data on selected types of materials. It does not cover all materials (i.e., microforms, loose sheet
music, maps, and pictures) for which expenditures are reported under Print Materials Expenditures, Electronic Materials Expenditures,
and Other Material Expenditures. Under this category report only items the library has acquired as part of the collection and cataloged,
whether purchased, lease, licensed, or donated as gifts that have been purchased, leased or licensed by the library, a consortium, the
state library, a donor or other person or entity. Included items must only be accessible with a valid library card or at a physical library
location; inclusion in the catalog is not required. Do not include items freely available without monetary exchange. Do not include items
that are permanently retained by the patron; count only items that have a set circulation period where it is available for their use. Count
electronic materials at the administrative entity level; do not duplicate numbers at each branch.


For guidance in counting electronic materials, please reference the following guide: Counting Electronic Materials for the IPLAR


17.1  Print Materials [PLSC 450] 120,557 
17.2  Current Print Serial Subscriptions [PLSC 460] 273 
17.3  Total Print Materials (17.1+17.2) 120,830 
17.4  E-books Held at end of the fiscal year [PLSC 451] 37,642 
17.5a  Audio Recordings: Physical Units Held at end of the fiscal year [PLSC 452] 12,175 
17.5b  Audio Recordings: Downloadable Units Held at end of the fiscal year [PLSC 453] 14,295 
17.6a  DVDs/Videos: Physical Units Held at end of the fiscal year [PLSC 454] 21,911 
17.6b  DVDs/Videos: Downloadable Units Held at end of the fiscal year [PLSC 455] 4,448 


Electronic Collections


Report the number of electronic collections. An electronic collection is a collection of electronically stored data or unit records (facts,
bibliographic data, abstracts, texts, photographs, music, video, etc.) with a common user interface and software for the retrieval and use
of the data. An electronic collection may be organized, curated and electronically shared by the library, or rights may be provided by a
third party vendor. An electronic collection may be funded by the library, or provided through cooperative agreement with other
libraries, or through the State Library. Do not include electronic collections that are provided by third parties and freely linked to on the
web.


Electronic Collections do not have a circulation period, and may be retained by the patron. Remote access to the collection may or may
not require authentication. Unit records may or may not be included in the library’s catalog; the library may or may not select individual
titles. Include electronic collections that are available online or are locally hosted in the library.


Note: The data or records are usually collected with a particular intent and relate to a defined topic. 


Report the number of electronic collections acquired through curation, payment or formal agreement, by source of access.


17.7  Local/Other Cooperative agreements [PLSC 456] 48 
17.8  State (state government or state library) [PLSC 457] 13 
17.9  Total Electronic Collections (17.7 + 17.8) [PLSC 458] 61 



https://il.countingopinions.com/docs/il/CountingElectronicItems_IPLAR_2020.pdf





USE OF RESOURCES (18.1 - 18.17)


Libraries are require by statute [75 ILCS 5/4-10(3), 75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(6)] to provide a statement as to the number and character of
items circulated by the library. Report for the library's entire fiscal year.


18.1  Number of adult materials loaned 393,069 
18.2  Number of young adult materials loaned 47,186 
18.3  Number of children's materials loaned [PLSC 551] 224,610 
18.4  Total number of materials loaned (18.1 + 18.2 + 18.3) 664,865 


Report circulation, including renewals, by the material types below.


For guidance in counting electronic content circulation and usage, please reference the following guide: Reporting Electronic Item Usage
for the IPLAR


18.5  Books- Physical 263,350 
18.6  Videos/DVDs- Physical 150,538 
18.7  Audios (include music)- Physical 17,524 
18.8  Magazines/Periodicals- Physical 6,068 
18.9  Other Items- Physical 1,230 
18.10  Physical Item Circulation (18.5-18.9) [PLSC 553] 438,710 
18.11  Use of Electronic Materials [PLSC 552] 226,155 
18.12  Total Circulation of Materials (18.10+18.11) [PLSC 550] 664,865 
18.13  Successful Retrieval of Electronic Information [PLSC 554] 66,100 
18.14  Electronic Content Use (18.11+18.13) [PLSC 555] 292,255 
18.15  Total Collection Use (18.10+18.11+18.13) [PLSC 556] 730,965 
18.16  Interlibrary Loans Provided TO other libraries [PLSC 575] 5,811 
18.17  Interlibrary Loans Received FROM other libraries [PLSC 576] 4,365 


PATRON SERVICES (19.1-19.2)


This section gathers information on services the library provides to its patrons. Please fill in the information requested.


Reference Transactions


Reference Transactions are information consultations in which library staff recommend, interpret, evaluate, and/or use information
resources to help others to meet particular information needs.


A reference transaction includes information and referral service as well as unscheduled individual instruction and assistance in using
information sources (including web sites and computer-assisted instruction). Count Readers Advisory questions as reference
transactions.


NOTE: It is essential that libraries do not include directional transactions in the report of reference transactions. Directional transactions
include giving instruction for locating staff, library users, or physical features within the library. Examples of directional transactions
include, “Where is the reference librarian? Where is Susan Smith? Where is the rest room? Where are the 600s? Can you help me make a
photocopy?”


If an annual count is not available, then select a typical week and multiply by 52 to estimate the annual count.


19.1  Total Annual Reference Transactions [PLSC 502]  3 8,200 



https://il.countingopinions.com/docs/il/ReportingElectronicItemUsage_IPLAR_2020.pdf





One-on-One Tutorials


One-on-one tutorials are when a staff member spends a considerable amount of time tutoring or teaching a patron on a specific subject.
Note that these are different from programs, which are put on for a group, and reference transactions, which are limited to information
consultations (see definition above).


19.2  Total Annual One-on-One Tutorials 258


AUTOMATION (20.1 - 20.5)


This section is collecting information about automation technology in your library. Please provide the requested information below.


20.1  Total number of ALL computers in the library 257 
20.2  Total number of PUBLIC USE (Internet and non-Internet accessible) computers in the
library) 117 


20.3  Is your library's catalog automated?  
20.4  Is your library's catalog accessible via the web?  
20.5  Does your library have a telecommunications messaging device for the hearing impaired?  


INTERNET (21.1 - 21.9)


This section collects information about internet services in the library facility. Please provide the requested information below.


21.1  Does your library have Internet access?  
21.2a  What is the maximum speed of your library's Internet connection? (Select one)  
21.2b  If Other, please specify  
21.3  What is the monthly cost of the library's internet access? $1,303 
21.4  Number of Internet Computers Available for Public Use [PLSC 650] 117 
21.5  Number of Uses (Sessions) of Public Internet Computers Per Year [PLSC 651] 14,917 
21.6  Wireless Sessions Per Year [PLSC 652] 167,492 
21.7  Does your library utilize Internet filters on some or all of the public access computers?  
21.8  Does your library provide instruction (workshops, classes) to patrons on the use of the
Internet?  


21.9  Number of website visits or sessions to your library website [PLSC 653] 1,235,074 


E-RATE (22.1 - 22.3)


E-Rate is the commonly used name for the Schools and Libraries Program of the Universal Service Fund, which is administered by the
Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) under the direction of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). The program
provides discounts to assist schools and libraries in the United States to obtain affordable telecommunications and Internet access.


22.1  Did your library apply directly for E-rate discounts for the fiscal year?  
22.2a  If YES, did your library apply for Category 1, Category 2 or both?  
22.2b  IF YES, what is the dollar amount that your library was awarded for the fiscal year report
period?  


22.3  If NO, why did your library NOT participate in the E-rate program?


Yes
Yes
No


Yes
45 Mbps or more


Yes


No


--Select--


No
 







STAFF DEVELOPMENT & TRAINING (23.1 - 23.5)


This section focuses on staff development and training. Please provide the requested information below.


23.1  How much money did your library spend on staff development and training this fiscal year?
(Round answer to the nearest whole dollar.) $74,093 


23.2  Does the above amount include travel expenses?  
23.3  How many hours of training did employees receive this year? 1,832.00 
23.4  Does your library provide training to enable staff to better serve their patrons on the autism
spectrum?  


23.5  Would you like to receive autism training at your library?  


COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS (24.1-24.3)


Please use this section to provide further information about your library and/or comments or suggestions for changes to the IPLAR
process. We will use the comments you supply to better represent your data to the Public Library Survey and to help improve future
versions of the IPLAR.


24.1  Are there any other factors that may have affected your library's annual report data of
which you would like to make us aware?
24.2  Are there any unique programs or services your library provided during the report period of
which you would like to make us aware?


24.3  Please provide any comments, suggestions or concerns about the Illinois Public Library
Annual Report (IPLAR).


ISL should make it possible for submitters to enter
information about staff positions and salaries as a
spreadsheet attachment instead of the webform.


PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT SECRETARY'S AUDIT (25.1-25.5)


Public Library Districts are required by statute [75 ILCS 16/30-65(a)(1),(c)(d)] to submit the Public Library District Secretary's Audit.


NOTE: If there ARE any errors or discrepancies, please list and explain fully.


25.1  Were the secretary’s records found to be complete and accurate?
25.2  If NO, please list and explain any errors or discrepancies.
25.3  First board member completing the audit
25.4  Second board member completing the audit
25.5  Date the Secretary's Audit was completed


IPLAR CERTIFICATION


Please have the library director, board president and board secretary type their names in the boxes provided to certify that they agree
with the following statement:


This Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) is being filed in accordance with 75 ILCS 5/4-10 (municipal libraries) or 75 ILCS
16/30-65 (public library districts). The undersigned authorized agents for this public library: (1) accept and acknowledge that the
appended IPLAR is essentially accurate and correct; (2) transmit the appended IPLAR for review and any subsequent resolution; and, (3)
agree that the electronic IPLAR copy submitted to the Illinois State Library shall serve as the official file copy.


 Electronic Signature Date
Library Director
President
Secretary


Yes


Yes


No


 







IPLAR SUBMISSION REMINDERS


Follow these steps for IPLAR submission:
1. Select the "Verify" button located at the top of the screen.
2. Review the form and resolve any required fields or edit checks (they will be highlighted in red). In the case of edit checks, explain
pragmatically why this year's answer is equal to, less than, or more than the previous year's answer.
3. Select the "Submit/Lock" button at the top of the page. 


NOTE: All required questions must be answered and all edit checks must contain narrative notes in order for the survey to electronically
submit, otherwise you will be taken to a review screen listing the questions that require additional information. If you have trouble
getting the form to submit/lock, please contact Pat Burg (217-785-1168, pburg@ilsos.gov).


 1, 8.1b  The District uses modified cash basis accounting. Funds are recognized in the fiscal year they are received and are not accrued to future fiscal
years. (0-2020-07-16)


 2, 16.2a  Last year's figure included reciprocal borrowers in error. (0-2020-07-15)


 3, 19.1  COVID-19 Closure (0-2020-07-28)








1 
 


MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  
OF THE BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 


 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Library Trustees was held on July 13, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. Due to health 
and safety concerns related to the COVID-19 virus, this meeting was held via videoconference/conference 
call, according to Public Act 101-0640.  Notice of this meeting was sent to the board and the press on July 
10, 2020. 
 
Present and acting as trustees were: 
Donald Minner, President  
Carolyn Welch Clifford, Vice President 
Carrie F. Carr, Treasurer 
Denise Tenyer, Secretary 
Jennifer Lucas, Trustee 
Jan Miller, Trustee 
William Pizzi, Trustee 
 
Also in attendance were: 
Jesse Henning, Executive Director 
Cheryl Riendeau, Finance Manager 
Lisa Stordahl, Office Manager 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
President Minner called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
II. ROLL CALL 
Lisa Stordahl called the roll. 
 
III. AUDIENCE RECOGNITION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
President Minner welcomed Ms. Lucas to the meeting and thanked her for her willingness to serve as an 
appointed member of the Library Board of Trustees.  President Minner moved, seconded by Treasurer 
Carr, to appoint Ms. Jennifer Lucas to the Board of Trustees for the remainder of the 2014-2021 term.   
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
The oath of office was administered to Ms. Lucas. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
The minutes from the June 8, 2020, Regular Meeting, the June 8, 2020, Personnel Committee, and the 
June 29, 2020 Committee of the Whole Meeting were reviewed.  President Minner asked if there were 
any questions or corrections to the minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 8.  There were none.  A 
motion to approve the Regular Meeting minutes was made by President Minner and seconded by Trustee 
Miller. 







2 
 


 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
President Minner asked if there were any questions or corrections to the minutes of the Personnel 
Committee Meeting of June 8, 2020.  There were none. Treasurer Carr moved to approve the minutes of 
the Personnel Committee Meeting as presented. Vice President Clifford seconded the motion.  
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
President Minner asked if there were any questions or corrections to the minutes of the Committee of the 
Whole Meeting of June 29, 2020.  There were none.  President Miner moved to approve the minutes of 
the Committee of the Whole Meeting as presented.   Trustee Miller seconded the motion.   
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
The board reviewed the closed session minutes from the Personnel Committee Meeting of June 8 and the 
Committee of the Whole Meeting of June 29.  President Minner asked if there were any questions, or if 
any corrections needed to be made to either set of minutes.  No corrections were suggested.  Trustee 
Miller made a motion to approve the closed session minutes from the Personnel Committee Meeting of 
June 8, and the Committee of the Whole Meeting of June 29.  Treasurer Carr seconded the motion. 
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
  
V. MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS / BUSINESS 
President’s Report 
President Minner congratulated Lucy Downs and Maryjo Nitz on their five-year work anniversaries with 
the Barrington Area Library and asked that the board’s thanks be passed to Lucy and Maryjo for their 
work and dedication to the Barrington Area Library and the community it serves.  
 
Treasurer’s Report 







3 
 


Treasurer Carr presented the Treasurer’s report. Beginning balance was $8,611,367.38 with receipts of 
$1,402,318.22 and expenditures of $860,549.91; leaving an ending balance of $9,153,135.69. At the close 
of the fiscal year, revenues are 101.60% of anticipated, and expenditures are 84.31% of the budget.  It 
was noted that due to the COVID-19 closure, some of the budget lines were not fully spent as they would 
have been had the library remained open.  Treasurer Carr moved to approve the Treasurer’s Report and 
bills for payment as presented.  Secretary Tenyer seconded the motion.   
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
In construction news, the lower lot seal coating and striping have been completed to correct the prior 
defects.  A drainage issue between the joints of the upper and lower lots will need to be addressed as the 
lots age.  The architect is looking for ways to mitigate the problem. 
 
PLP (Parking Lot Pick-up) services began on June 15, serving 1,118 customers and circulating 17,463 
physical items.  The library will begin the limited reopening phase on July 27 and will be set up for 
customers to make quick and efficient visits.  Director Henning pointed out that the building will look 
different, noting that the library experience will focus on providing materials and reference.  Paths will be 
created to allow customers to travel safely throughout the building to ask reference questions, browse 
the collection, and check out materials.  Meeting and Study Rooms will not be available, and furniture will 
be removed to encourage customers to move through the building safely and efficiently.  While the 
computer catalog stations will be available, all other computers have been removed for the time being, 
and the Business/Technology section will be closed.  Programming will continue to be provided online, as 
well as offering a few programs outdoors following social distancing guidelines. 
 
The board suggested that the public be notified early and often about these changes so that there are no 
surprises when the building reopens.  Director Henning stated that staff are currently working hard on this 
and will start publicizing the information within the next few days. 
 
President Minner also recommended promoting the reopening of the call center as soon as possible as 
customers have missed that service. 
 
Secretary Tenyer asked if Parking Lot Pickup will still be available once the building reopens.  Director 
Henning said that they would try to keep that service for customers who don’t feel comfortable coming 
into the building.   
 
VI. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 
None. 
 
 VII. OLD BUSINESS 
None. 
  
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 







4 
 


Director Henning asked the board to consider Public Policy 3.3.1, the Temporary Restore Illinois Safety 
Amendment.  Pursuant to COVID-19 Executive Order Numbers 38 and 41 and the Restore Illinois Plan, all 
customers over the age of two entering District buildings must wear a mask or face covering and must 
maintain a six-foot distance from other customers and library staff when practicable or when requested 
by staff.   
 
Reasonable accommodations will be made available to those who are medically prevented from or 
decline to wear a face covering.   
 
The District reserves the right to refuse entry to customers non-compliant with this policy. 
 
This policy shall be rescinded automatically when the Illinois Department of Public Health declares that 
the Northeast Region has reached Phase 5 of the Restore Illinois Plan.  The policy shall be reinstated 
automatically should the Illinois Department of Public Health instruct the Northeast Region to any phase 
lower than Phase 5 of the Restore Illinois plan or if required by the Lake County Health Department of 
other municipal authority. 
 
The board noted that the staff had its full support in face-covering compliance, and stated that they want 
staff and customers to feel safe while at the library. 
 
A motion to approve Public Policy 3.3.1 was made by President Minner and seconded by Trustee Pizzi. 
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
IX. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
VI: ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, President Minner moved to adjourn the meeting.  Treasurer Carr 
seconded the motion.    
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m.     


 
 


 
 ____________________________________________ 


 
                                                                        Secretary 








NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING  


BY VIDEOCONFERENCE OR CONFERENCE CALL 


 
 A meeting of the Barrington Public Library Board of Trustees will be held on 


Monday, August 10, 2020, beginning at 7:00 p.m.  Due to health and safety 


concerns related to the COVID-19 virus, this meeting will be held via conference 


call pursuant to Public Act 101-0640. 


 Members of the public may join the webinar by using this link: 


https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/j/98357384921?pwd=OHZSalBzYm45bHFIR1ptU0hPUVRqUT09 


with password 380646.   Or can connect to the meeting via telephone by dialing 


1 (312) 626-6799 with Webinar ID 983 5738 4921 and password 380646. 


International numbers available: https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/u/adlXcK06l9 


 


_________________________ 


Secretary 



https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/j/98357384921?pwd=OHZSalBzYm45bHFIR1ptU0hPUVRqUT09

https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/u/adlXcK06l9






 


 
Social media engagement snapshot – JULY 2020 


 
 
 
  
 


 
  
 
 


  
 
 
 


AUDIENCE: 
Facebook Total Page Follows: 3,914 
Twitter Total Followers: 3,870 
Instagram Total Followers: 1,490 


It’s no secret what the most important message on our social media accounts 
was this month: the reopening of the Library building after over four months of 
closure due to COVID-19. Customers were happy about the news, but also had 
many questions about services and procedures during this “browse and 
borrow” phase of reopening. Posts about the reopening had hundreds of likes, 
comments, and click-throughs. 







 


 


 


 


 


 


We are grateful to local organizations for helping us to spread the news 
about the Library building reopening. Posts from 365 Barrington, 
Quintessential Barrington, the Barrington Area Chamber of Commerce, the 
Village of Deer Park, as well as personal social accounts, helped to generate 
excitement and share critical details about the first phase of reopening. The 
Village of Barrington also featured the reopening information in its weekly e-
newsletter. 








MEMBERSHIP CHECKOUTS
24,927 72 36,521
current cardholders                                                                   new cardholders total checkouts


COLLECTION
185,054 19,661
library items                     digital subscription uses


OUTREACH CONTACTS  - 27


0
locker SPACE


deliveries 1,658
library visits


388 0 0 0


outreach meeting room study room MakerLab


returns
uses uses visits


PROGRAMS TECHNOLOGY
67 programs offered 5,706 17 109,097


wi-fi internet website
sessions computer uses hits


TOP CIRCULATING TITLES - Downloadables


2,732 total program attendance Where the Crawdads Sing by Delia Owens


American Dirt by Jeanine Cummins


The Splendid and the Vile by Erik Larson


Walk the Wire by David Baldacci


Camino Winds by John Grisham


5 one-on-one sessions White Fragility by Robin DiAngelo


28 Summers by Elin Hilderbrand


STATISTICS JULY 2020  (COVID-19)


45 16 3 3


YS AS DS YA


2,285 416 27 4 


YS AS DS YA


0 5 0


Youth Adult Digital


11
,7


44
 


11
,0


91
 


4,
13


1 


86
9 


28
1 


4,
04


2 


36
7 


20
5 


3,
77


4 


17
 


CHECKOUTS BY MATERIAL 
TYPE


125


0


27


0


YS Outreach Contacts


AS Outreach Contacts


Digital Outreach Contacts


Parking Lot Pick-Up Stats:
* 3,185 Customers
* 10,367 Items





		Stats Summary Board Report






Director’s Report – July 2020 


 


Administrative Notes 


 The District, under guidance from Robbins Schwartz and Klein, Thorpe, and Jenkins, has verified 


the Fourth Amended Complaint in the case against the Village of Hoffman Estates and Sears 


Holdings. 


o The goal is to dissolve the Sears EDA and have the tax increments held redistributed to 


the taxing districts. 


o Sears Holdings and the Village will likely settle, which would route some of the funds 


from the EDA to both of those bodies. 


 


 A data breach of our accounting service provider’s services exposed some personally identifiable 


information of BALibrary vendors. We are in the process of informing them about the breach. 


 


Library Closure Notes 


The library closure to the public ended on July 27th. 


 


Library Service Currently 


Parking Lot Pickup service was available the entire month of July up to and including the Browse and 


Borrow reopening period. 


 Parking Lot Pickup 


Parking Lot Pickup service has dramatically fallen off since Browse and Borrow service has 


started. Staff have encountered difficulty offering both in-person and drive-up service efficiently 


and effectively and are looking to modify the service with a mail delivery component or a 


reservation slot system. 


7/1-25 statistics: 


 3,185 ‘visits’ (-86%) 


 10,367 physical item circulations (-79%) 


 152 PLP transactions per open day 


7/27-8/2 statistics, after Browse and Borrow reopening: 


 207 ‘visits’ 


 35 PLP transactions per open day (-76% over early July) 


 


 Browse and Borrow 


Browse and Borrow service started at 9am on Monday, July 27th, with the library open its full 


complement of hours. 







First week statistics: 


 7,616 physical item circulations (-38%) 


 2,007 customer visits (-59%) 


 3.8 items per visit (+52%) 


 The peak capacity of the building was 60 customers – 38% of our maximum capacity 


under Illinois Department of Public Health guidelines. 


Library Service in the Future 


Management worked to revise the Pandemic Reopening Plan guided by insights gathered in the first 


weeks of reopening, resulting in a general timeline of when and which services will be restored in the 


coming months. Reopening will continue in the following set of steps, provided that Region 9 stays in 


Phase 4 and is not under any mitigation steps: 


1. Service to remote pickup lockers and community book drops will be restored September 1. 


2. Business Technology should reopen in mid-September. 


a. Study rooms and business cubicles will be made available for reservation at reduced 


occupancy. 


b. A limited number of computer stations will be made available for reservations of fixed 


duration. 


c. MakerLab in-person services will resume by appointment only. 


3. Second floor study rooms will be made available for reservation at reduced occupancy after a 


review of study room reopening in Business Technology. 


4. Public work tables and chairs will return at 25% capacity following the opening of the second 


floor study rooms and an assessment of customer demand. 


5. Meeting room reservations will return after all of the above can be safely achieved. 


6. In-person programming will not return until Phase 5. 


7. Indoor play equipment, toys, and Youth Services manipulatives will not return until Phase 5. 


 


Community Notes 


Met with District 220 Assistant Superintendent for Teaching and Learning to discuss BALibrary 


interventions for remote learning. 


 A primary issue is space and supervision – administrators and families are looking for spaces 


where children can be connected to their online classes outside of the house or with 


appropriate supervision. BALibrary may not be able to provide this service directly but is looking 


for alternatives. 


 District 220 expressed an interest in engaging in an IGA to provide BALibrary services to all 220 


students, including those outside of the District’s boundaries. 


Contacted Fox River Valley Public Library District Director to discuss options for offering IGA service to 


Carpentersville area 220 students. 





